
Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

1 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE HENDERSONVILLE  
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Tuesday, January 11, 2022 
1:30 p.m. in the City Operations Center  

 
The Hendersonville Board of Adjustment held its regular monthly meeting on January 11, 2022 at 1:30 
p.m. in the Assembly Room in City Operations Center, 305 Williams Street, Hendersonville, North 
Carolina. Those present were: Melinda Lowrance, Chair, Ernest Mowell, Roger Woosley, Libby Collina, 
Charles Webb, Kathy Watkins, Stefan Grunwald, Matthew Manley, Planning Manager, Tyler Morrow, 
Planner II, Alexandra Hunt, Planner I, and Angela Beeker, City Attorney. 
 
Absent: Barbara McCoy and Edney  
 
Chair called the meeting to order at 1:38 p.m. 
 
Approval of the Agenda: A motion was made by Ms. Watkins and seconded by Ms. Collina to approve 
the agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the November 8, 2021 meeting. A motion was made by Mr. Webb and 
seconded by Ms. Collina to approve the minutes as written. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Approval of the Decision for a variance application from Sullivan File No. V-11-09-01 Variance from 1002 
5th Avenue W. A motion was made by Ms. Watkins to accept the Decision as written. Ms. Collina 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously.  
 
Variance – Halford Partners LLC & ALPHA Investments LLC – John Halford Ct. Lot 3 
 
Chair stated we have a variance to consider today from Halford Partners, LLC & ALPHA Investments, LLC 
for the property located on John Halford Court Lot 3. Any persons desiring to testify in these hearings 
must first be sworn in.  Since this is a quasi-judicial hearing, it is very important that we have an accurate 
record of what goes on here. Therefore, we must ask that you refrain from speaking until recognized by 
the Chair and, when recognized, that you come forward to the podium and begin by stating your name 
and address.  Anyone present who has knowledge of anything of value that has been given or promised 
in exchange for a position to be taken on these applications should disclose it now.  
 
Chair swore in all persons to give testimony. Those sworn in were Tyler Morrow, Planner II, Mr. Manley, 
Planning Manager, and Mr. Bruce Fleming of Halford Partners LLC.   
 
Chair opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Manley, Planning Manager, asks the Chair if she would like to give the applicant the option to 
proceed with this hearing since only seven (7) members are present and would require a unanimous 
vote.  
 
Mr. Fleming, applicant, asks Mr. Manley for clarification as to the Chair’s statement and what would Mr. 
Manley recommend, he do.  



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

2 
 

 
Mr. Manley stated that he cannot give advice. 
 
Ms. Beeker, City Attorney, stated that it is staff’s position that they cannot give advice to the applicant. 
 
Mr. Manley stated that there are nine (9) members of the Board and that all nine are not always present 
each month.  
 
Ms. Beeker stated that one person who was recently appointed is expected to attend all meetings. 
 
The applicant stated that he would like to proceed with the hearing.  
 
Tyler Morrow, Planner II, with the City of Hendersonville, stated his name and title for the record. He 
asked that the staff reports, and attachments be entered into evidence for this hearing. 
 
Mr. Morrow stated that the Community Development Department has received an application from 
Halford Partners, LLC and ALPHA Investments, LLC for a variance from Sections 17-3-2, 17-3-3 and 
Section 5-3-3 of the Zoning Ordinance. The variances requested are to reduce the required stream 
buffer from the required 30’ to 15’ in Section 17-3-2; to reduce the transitional area from the required 
20’ to 15’ in Section 17-3-3; and to reduce the front setback from the required 30’ to 12’ in Section 5-3-
3.  
 
Mr. Morrow stated the following concerning the subject property: 
 

 The subject property possesses a PIN of 9569-77-4636 and is zoned as R-15 Medium Density 
Residential.   

 The lot is currently vacant.  

 Based on Henderson County records, the lot size is approximately 0.34 acres or 15,002 square 
feet.  

 The principal structure setbacks for R-15 are: 
o Front: 30’ 
o Side: 10’ 
o Rear: 15’ 

 Based on the most recent USGS seven-and-one-half minute quadrangle topographic maps, the 
subject property has a blue line stream running through its boundaries. 

 The subject property was platted on December 9th, 2005 

 The stream is identified as Horse Creek based on a plat recorded on December 9th, 2005. 

 City Council adopted an ordinance creating stream buffer protection standards which included a 
30’ stream buffer and 20’ transitional area at their meeting on September 6th, 2001. 

 Section 17-3-2 of the Hendersonville Zoning Ordinance requires that Stream buffer protection 
shall apply on each side of the stream and shall measure 30 feet horizontally from the top of the 
stream bank in a direction perpendicular to the stream flow. 

 Section 17-3-3 of the Hendersonville Zoning Ordinance requires that there be a 20-foot 
transitional area immediately landward of the stream buffer which may be graded, landscaped 
and/or used for pedestrian or vehicular purposes so long as no impervious materials are utilized. 

 
The site plan was shown. Mr. Morrow identified the proposed structure on the site indicated in green. 



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

3 
 

 
Mr. Morrow read the requirements of Sections 17-3-2, 17-3-3 and 5-3-3 (R-15) of the Zoning Ordinance 
and reviewed the requested variances from each of these sections.  
 
Mr. Morrow stated that the applicant is requesting a 15’ variance from the stream buffer and a 5’ 
variance from the transitional area as well as an 18’ variance from the front setback requirements. 
 
Photos were shown of the property. An image of the blue line stream was shown on the property.  
 
Mr. Morrow highlighted the standards for granting a variance in Section 10-9 of the Zoning Ordinance 
and indicated that a proposed motion is located in the file. 
 
Chair asked if there were any questions for staff. 
 
Mr. Woosley asked about the planting of lawns.  
 
Ms. Watkins asked to show the ordinance requirements for stream buffers and transitional areas. 
 
Ms. Collina asks for clarification on the variance requests by the applicant.  
 
Mr. Morrow states that the applicant is requesting a 15’ variance from the 30’ stream buffer 
requirement and to reduce the transitional area requirement from 20’ to 15’.  
 
Chair asks if the applicant would like to speak.  
 
Bruce Fleming, 414 Overhill Drive stated his name and address for the record. He stated that they are 
really stuck and says that without a variance they cannot develop the subject property. 
 
Ms. Collina asks if the current owner is the one who originally platted the property. 
 
Mr. Fleming states he believes another company was involved in 2005 before the owner was. 
 
Ms. Collina asks if both the owner and the applicant are involved in platting the subject property. 
 
Mr. Fleming states again he believes there was another company involved in the platting process in 
2005. 
 
Ms. Collina asks if the plat that is shown is the recorded plat. 
 
Mr. Morrow, Planner II, stated that the plat shown is the 2005 plat.  
 
Ms. Collina asked if the location of the stream has changed since the 2005 plat. 
 
Mr. Fleming stated that the site plan that was shown is where the stream is located today.  
 
Mr. Grunwald asked whether the stream shifted toward where it is currently drawn on the site plan. 
 
Ms. Collina asked approximately how much did the stream shift.  



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

4 
 

 
Ms. Watkins stated that she is viewing it on her phone as it was hard to see on the map shown and 
proceeds to ask a question about what is viewed on her phone. 
 
Ms. Beeker, City Attorney, stated that staff can pull up the GIS Map so all Board members can see more 
clearly.  
 
Staff works to bring up the GIS Map on the projector. 
 
Mr. Morrow stated that an updated easement survey shows the creek and asked for this recent survey 
to be entered into the record and file.   
 
Ms. Collina asked if the Board were to grant the 15’ variance would they need a 20’ setback. 
 
Mr. Fleming stated that they are asking for the 30’ variance to be reduced and to have a 15’ no build 
area and a 15’ transitional area instead of the 50’ stream buffer requirement. 
 
Mr. Woosley asked whether any vegetation would be removed and if it was brush.  
Mr. Manley, Planning Manager, stated that the zoning ordinance does approve removal of invasive 
plants.  
 
Mr. Manley asked the applicant why he was proposing a 15’ no build area and a 15’ transitional area 
instead of a 30’ buffer.  
 
Mr. Fleming stated he thinks the transitional area is useful for the landscaping and the appearance.  He 
was basing what he is requesting on a similar exception in the code that allows for the lots platted prior 
to 2001, a little bit of room to be developed.  It would still be protecting the creek but allowing a little 
more latitude for development of those lots and that called for a 15’ buffer and a 15’ transitional zone.     
 
Ms. Collina asked whether the green box indicated the proposed house and what is the 12’ setback 
measured from. 
 
Mr. Fleming stated that the 12’ is measured from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Manley stated that the 12’ is from the property line not the sidewalk. 
 
Ms. Collina asked about the placement of a sidewalk and if it could be adjusted to somewhere else on 
the property. 
 
Mr. Fleming stated that they are working with a draftsman to make it look nice and appropriate.  
 
Chair asked if anyone else wished to speak. 
 
Mr. Morrow, Planner II, stated that if the Board can make their motion for the most recent plat instead 
of the 2005 plat. 
 
Ms. Collina asked if the most recent plat is the one with the accurate setbacks. 
 



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

5 
 

Mr. Morrow responded that the most recent plat meets the zoning ordinance setback requirements. 
 
Chair closed the public hearing for Board discussion.  
 
Mr. Fleming, applicant, asked the Chair to reopen the hearing in order to provide additional information 
for the Board to consider.  
 
Chair reopened the public hearing.  
 
Chair swore in all persons to give testimony. Those sworn in were Steve Katsadouros of ALPHA 
Investments, LLC, and Matthew Manley, Planning Manager.  
 
Mr. Katsadouros stated that the property was purchased in 2009 and has paid property taxes and they 
would like to develop the property and do not want to violate any rules and if they cannot get a 
variance, he has been paying property taxes and doing what he was supposed to do for no reason.  
 
Mr. Manley stated that Staff would like to enter the deed to the subject property into the record 
showing the ALPHA Investments purchased the lot in 2008. 
 
Ms. Watkins stated that there are other properties that exist that cannot be developed, and that the 
applicant purchased a group of these lots when the ordinance has these requirements and that the 
Board should protect the intent of the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Grunwald stated that what needs to be understood is the transition of the stream since the 2005 
plat and how much the stream has moved which then created the current hardship. 
 
Ms. Collina stated that the size of the proposed building could be reduced. 
 
Mr. Woosley agreed with Ms. Collina and stated that the house could be smaller. 
 
Ms. Watkins asked whether the lot is in the floodplain and if she could see the floodplain map. 
 
The floodplain map was shown. 
 
Ms. Beeker, City Attorney, stated that Board has the option to grant a variance in whole or in part and 
can also place conditions on a variance. 
 
Mr. Manley gave an example of a condition and used the types of plantings in the transitional zone as an 
example. 
 
Mr. Webb stated that the transitional zone that is shown on the site plan is small but that it can still be 
functional and compared the transitional zones that exist in his neighborhood that are much larger but 
no longer have any kind of vegetation or plantings which do not help or protect the stream and 
suggested that the Board allow the reduced transitional zone but with the condition that the applicant 
improve the transitional zone with vegetation.  
 
Ms. Collina stated that her concern from a builder’s perspective is that when digging footers, it will 
disturb the transitional area if reduced. 



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

6 
 

 
Ms. Watkins asked who monitors the conditions to make sure that they are followed. 
 
Ms. Beeker stated that it is staff’s position that you could grant the variance on the condition that the 
transition area not be disturbed except for the removal of brush for instance.  You can put some 
conditions like that to help address some of the concerns that the Board is expressing.  She felt the 
Board was unaware of this and Staff’s position is that you would have this option as well.    
 
Ms. Collina asked if the Board can see the transitional zone requirement of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Mr. Webb asked if conditions needed to be made now when reading the motion. 
 
Ms. Beeker stated that the Board can defer the vote to give time for staff to draft a motion with 
conditions the Board suggests, and the Board can vote during the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Woosley stated that it is his suggestion to hold the vote until the motion and conditions is drafted 
and the Board can review during the next meeting.  
 
Ms. Beeker asked the Board to give staff guidance on the conditions they would like to see. 
 
Ms. Collina asked if the applicant can do anything within the stream buffer under Sections 17-3-2 and 
17-3-3.  
 
Mr. Manley stated that the ordinance contains exceptions to the stream buffer and reviewed some of 
the exceptions. 
 
Ms. Collina stated that whoever platted the lots in 2008 platted an unbuildable lot per the zoning 
ordinance at the time.  
 
Ms. Beeker stated that it is staff’s position that the Board must consider the evidence presented.  
 
Mr. Manley stated that it is his understanding that the Board is considering a possible condition 
regarding the vegetation of the transitional area.  
 
Ms. Collina suggested the condition state the transitional zone be disturbed as little as possible and 
when construction is completed it is required to be replanted and restored.  
 
Ms. Beeker asked if the Board would be amenable to staff working with the applicant on some 
conditions to bring back to the Board at their next meeting. 
 
Chair motioned to delay the vote until next meeting so staff can work with the applicant on drafting 
proposed conditions.  
 
Chair called for the vote. The following vote was taken by a show of hands. 
 
 
 
 



Board of Adjustment 

January 12, 2022 

 

7 
 

 
Mr. Woosley  Yes 
Mr. Mowell  Yes 
Mr. Webb  Yes 
Ms. Lowrance  Yes 
Ms. Watkins  Yes 
Ms. Collina  Yes 
Mr. Grunwald  Yes 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:53 p.m.  
 
 
 
__________________________________                                    _____________________________ 

Melinda Lowrance, Chair                                                       Terri Swann, Secretary 

 


